NANGIA & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Celsia Hotels Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2022 and
the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, statement of
Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
("IND AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 315 March, 2022, and its profit, total comprehensive income,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report, We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have cobtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw out your attention to note 33 of the financial statements which sets out financial
impact on account of COVID 19 pandemic situation. Based on these assessments, the
management has concluded that the Company will be able to meet all of its obligations as
well as recover the carrying amount of its assets as on March 31, 2022.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

» The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information obtained at the date of this auditor's report is information
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included in the Director’s Report, Chairman’s statement, but does not include the
Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

*« Quropinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
fevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Ind AS financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive tc those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate toc provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the “"Annexure - A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

g)

h)

We have sought and cbtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), and the Cash Flow Statement (and statement of changes
in equity) dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the afcresaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 315 March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and
the operating effectiveness of such contrels, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B” to this report.

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 27 to the Ind AS
financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on bebhalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries .
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b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
of Rule 11(e}, as provided under {(a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement,

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and
has not proposed final dividend for the year

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

Peakeok frgeawal

Prateelk Agrawal

Partner

Membership No. 402826

Signed at Gurugram on May 24, 2022
UDIN: 22402826AINVWZ6032
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors Report
[Refer to in our separate report of even date]

Annexure referred to under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Report of even date to the members of Celsia Hotels Private
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2022 and based on
the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of accounts and other records examined by us in
the normal course of audit, we report that:

I In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

{a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

II {a)

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and
Equipment in phased periodical manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due
for verification during the year and were physically verified by the
Management during the vyear. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

Title deeds in respect of all immovable properties are held in the name of
the company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and and intangible
assets during the year.

As confirmed by the management, no proceedings have been initiated
during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

As explained to us physical verification of inventory has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the management at reasonable interval in respect
of Food & Beverages, Liquor, Wines and smokes and Stores and spares. In
our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and there is no discrepancies of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class oﬂfrigyentory were noticed.
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v

VI

VII

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥
5 crore, in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence
reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not made any
investments provided guarantee or security or granted any advance in the
nature of loan, secured or unsecured to Company, Firm, limited liability
partnership or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(a), (b), {c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees, and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable,

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under
clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.
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VIII

IX

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no

amounts in respect of Income Tax, Goods and Services tax, Sales Tax,
Value Added Tax, Employee state Insurance, Duty of Excise, Duty of
Custom, Cess and Service Tax etc. that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authority on account of any dispute.

Nature Nature of : Amount | Period to which | Forum where
of the | the Dues (In Rs. | amount relates | dispute is
Statute Lalkhs) pending
Finance Service Tax 83.89 | July 2012 to | Commissioner
Act, 1994 | demand March 2015 of Service Tax

Out of above, the Company has deposited Rs. 6.29 lakhs as a pre-deposit.

As confirmed by the management, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) As explained to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
and other borrowings and in repayment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) As confirmed by the management, the Company has not been declared
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(c) The Company has applied term loans for the purpose for which the loans
were obtained.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds on short-term basis during the year
hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix){d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3{ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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X1

XII

XIII

XIv

XV

XVI

XVII

{b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures
during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(2) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has
bean noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year
and upto the date of this report. '

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

As explained, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions
of para 3(xii) of the Crder are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not
applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not
applicable to the Company

The Company has implemented internal audit system on a voluntary basis
which is commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its
business though it is not required tc have an internal audit system under
Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors.
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b) (c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and
in the immediately preceding financial year.
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XVIII

XIX

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee

" nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from

XX

the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

In our opinion and according to the infermation and explanations given to us,
there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx){a) and
3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

Peaesk frgreusal

Prateek Agrawal

Partner,

Membership No. 402826
Signed at Gurugram on May 24, 2022
UDIN: 22402826AINVWZ6032
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors Report
[Refer to in our separate report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Celsia Hotels
Private Limited (“"the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit
of financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an copinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have, obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
oFrfz IJ\Q ancial controls systemn over financial

<

reporting. &)

11
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls sver Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reascnable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls ocver Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our apinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500062

Peadek byvauisal

Prateek Agrawal
Partner,

Membership No. 402826
Signed at Gurugram on May 24, 2022
UDIN: 22402826AINVWZ6032
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Clelsta Hotels Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at Mareh 31, 2022

Note As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 37, 2021
Rs ju lakhs Rs in lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assets |
(a} Property, plant and ednipment 3 7,386.36 7.511.14
(b) Intangible assets 4 327 1.3
(c) Financial assets 5
(i) Investiments 3,300,00 3,300.60
(ii) Other pon-current financial assets 24.69 24.7%
(d} Non-ourrent 1ax assets 35.91 57.98
' 10,750.23 10,934.04
Current assets .
{a) luventories 6 40,71 41,02
{b) Financial assets 7
(i} Trade receivables 971,84 2930
(ii} Cash and Cash equivalents. 734,12 6G05.50
(iii) Other current financial assets 34,67 22.96
(c) Other current assets 8 29.67 3835
H37.01 737.03
Total Assets 11,687.24 11,67197
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Share capilal 9 3.53 353
() Other Equity 10 $,499,31 6,486.33
Tolal Equity 6,502.84 .6,439.86
Liabilities
Non-current linhitities
(a) Financial lisbilities 11
(i) Borrowings 3,833.33 3,927.77
{b) Provisions 12 5.54 6.32
{c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 13 200.34 179.38
4,039,41 4,113.47
Cuorrent labilftics
(n) Financial liabilitics 14
(i} Borrowings 903,39 672,51
(i) Trade payables
- total onlstanding dues of mticro enterprises and small enterprises 39,63 12,62
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises und 94.46 287 8%
small enterpriscs
(i) Other current tinuncizl liabilitics 70,67 5408
{b) Other current liabitities 15 3124 26,97
{c) Provisions 12 520 4.58
’ 1,144,990 1,068.64
Tatal Lisbilities 5,184.40 5,182.11
Total Equity and Liabilktles 11,687.24 11,671.97

As per our repert of even date

T'or Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and o2 hehalf of the Board of Dicectors of
Celsla Hotels Private Limited

ICATFRN 002391C/NSM)06%

Prabesd I\Emwaj (5

Prateck Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 402826

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 24, 2022

e
Vand omar
Direeior
DIN: 000133306

Place : New Delhi
Date ; May 24, 2022

1
mﬁcﬁ

Director
DIN: 65251730



Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended March 31, 2022

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Revenue from operations 16 1,368.53 762,75
Other income 17 12,08 1.31
Totat Income 1,380.58 764,06
Expenses
Cost of food and beverages consumec 18 109.15 76.49
Employee benefits expense 19 234.42 16943 -
Other expenses 20 482,36 332,51
Total expenses §25.93 578.43
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 554,65 185.63
amortisation (EBITDA)
Finance costs 21 401,99 354,07
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 148.14 149.04
Finance income 23 (30.68) (4.46)
Profit/(Loss} before tax 3520 (313.02)
Tax expense;
(1) Current tax - -
{2y Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 7.78 13.24
(3} Deferred tax 14.90 {80.96)

22,68 (67.72)
Profit/Loss for the vear 12.52 (245300
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will nol be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 0.46 0.53
Income tax relating to items that will not be - -
reclassified to profit or loss

0.46 0.53

Tetal Comprehensive income/(foss) for the year 12,98 (244.77)
Earnings per equity share:
{1) Basic 24 3.55 (69.55)
{2) Diluted 24 3.55 (69.55)

As per our report of even date

For Nangia & Co, LLF
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

Praberk t’:\-ﬁmwd

Prateek Agrawal
Partner

Membership No. 402826

ol GURUGRAM

o

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 24, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Celsia Hotels Private Limited

M-

f
Rujesh Kuntar

P
A er Tomar
Director

DIN: 00013336

Director
DIN; 05251730

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 24, 2022



Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Equity Share Capital

Lqmity snares of INK 1 €ach ISsued, Subscrioed anc
fully paid
At April 1, 2020

Issue of share capital
At March 31, 2021

Issue of share capital
At March 31, 2022

No, of shares Amount
{Rs in lakhs)
352,677 3.53
152,677 353
352,677 3.53

B. Other Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2022

. Rs in lakhs

Reserves and Surplus
Capital reserve Securities Premium | Retained Earnings | Other Equity

Balance at April 1, 2020 7.16 3,614.77 3,108.17 6,731.10
Total Comprehensive less for the yea - - (244.77) (244.17)
Balance at March 31, 2021 7.16 3,614.77 2,864.40 6,486.33
Total Comprehensive income for the yea - - 12.98 12.98
Balance at March 31, 2022 7.16 3,614.77 2,877.38 6,499.31

Summary of significant accounting policies

21

The accotupanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Nangia & Co, LLI
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

Peateek Rsmmd

Prateck Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 402826

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 24, 2022

W

—
Davander Tom
Director

DIN: 00013336

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 24, 2022

For and onr behalf of the Board of Directors of
Celsia Hotels Private Limited

Rﬂesﬁf(:lﬁ;r

Director
DIN: 05251730




Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

Tor the year ended Far the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
A. Cash {low from operating activities
Profit/{loss) before tax 3520 (313.02)
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit before {ax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 148.14 145.04
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (23.22) (4.46)
Finanee costs (including fair value ¢change in financia! instruments) 395.43 350,03
Provision for gratuity {0.52) 1.59
Provision for leave encashment 1.81 1.73
Excess provision/ credit balances written back - (12.05) -
Operating profit before working capital changes: 544,79 184.91
Movements in working capital;
Change in trade receivables {68.64) 37.15
Change in loans and advances and other current assets (2.93) 2481
Change in inventories .31 558
Change in liabilities and provisiens (144.08) (57.04)
Cash Generated from Operations 329.45 195.91
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) 60.55 (1.96)
Net cash flow from operating actlvities (A) 390.00 193.85
B. Cash flow (used in}/generated from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (25.61) -
Purchase of current investment (195.00) (195.00)
Sale of current investment 195,00 195.00
Interest received 23.22 24.46
Net Cash flow (used in)/gencrated from investing activitios (B) {2.39) 4.46
C  Cash flow (uscd in)/gencrated from financing activities
Proceeds fiom leng term borrowings (net} 124.21 639,15
Interest paid (383,20} (350.03)
Net Cash flow {vsed in}/genernted from financing activities (C) (258.99) 289.12
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) . 128.62 487.53
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 605.50 117.97
Cash und cash equivalents at the end of the year 734.12 605.50
Compaonents of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand 1.42 1.16
Baiances with Scheduled Banks in
- Current aceounts 82.70 29.34
- Deposits with original maturity of less than thres months 650.00 575.00
Total cash and cash equivalents 734.12 603.50
Summary of significant accounting pelicies 2.1
The eccompanying netes are an intepral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Nangia & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accoutntants Celsia Hotels Private Limited
ICAIFRN 002391C/N500069
wakerk fegrasoa] v
b %J Ve & Ad y
Prateek Agrawal ;"‘ : Davander Tomar Bajesh Kumnr
Pariner S oauny Director Diirector
Membership No, 402826 Ing DIN: 00013336 DIN: 05251730
Place : Gurugram Place : New Delhi

Date ; May 24, 2022 Date : May 24, 2022



Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1. .

21
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{2)

Corporate Information

Celsia Hotels Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the company is located at Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-
110037,

The principal activities of the Company is to carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand
name of Lemon Tree Hotel.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on May 24, 2022,

Basis of preparation
Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard
(IndAS), and the provisions of the Companies Act ,2013 ('the Act') (to the extent notifted). The
Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost
convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured ai fair value/ amortized cost.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing account standard required a change to
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
upto two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification, An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

¢ It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

s It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

s There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period




Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{b)

(©)

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are clagsified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle,

Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates
the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in
profit or loss

Non-menetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Fair valye measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to iransfer a liability in an
orderly iransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either: '

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a Hability iz measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.




Celsia Hotels Private'Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate it the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
¢ Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable. '

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and labilitics. The
management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and
inputs to use for each case.

At cach reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, alse compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
-given in the relevant notes,

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 25)
Contingent consideration (Note 27)

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 29)

Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) (Note 29)
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Revenue recognition

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Company has applied the guidance
in Ind AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue
recognition criteria for each distinet performance obligation. The arrangements with customers
generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as distinet
performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has measured the
revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its refative standalone selling
price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence
of its standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met
hefore revenue is recognized.

(Goods and service tax (GST)/Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Company
on ifs own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restaurant, Banguets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation ig recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized as
and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added Taxes
(VAT) and Luxury Tax. Shortfall of revenue over the billed as at the year-end is carried in
financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax /
VAT/GST.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets
classified as available for sale, interest income is recorded using the effective mterest rate (EIR).
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Intersst income is included in finance income
in the income statement. '

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.
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Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underfying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to inferpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferved tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date. :

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be wiilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probale that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the defetred tax asset to be recoverad.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized oniside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
Ioss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:
¢ When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognized ag part of the cost of acguisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item, ag applicable
+ When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable io, the taxation authority is included as part
of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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Property, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its property plant and equipment recognized as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous

- GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and equipment.

Plant and equipment ig stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria
are met,

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied, All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule I1 of Companies Act, 2013 on Straight
Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assets Useful life considered

{SLM)
Building 60 Years
Plant & Machinery 15 Year
Electrical Fittings 10 Years
Electrical Equipment 10 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 8 Years
Vehicles 6 Years
Computers 3 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Intangible assets

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its Intangible assets recognized as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP, and
use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accurmulated amortization and
acennulated impairment losses. Internally gencrated intangibles, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss
in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are fested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amouunt of the asset and are recognized in
the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an ‘asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount
capitalized represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available
ot of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such
current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used
to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalized is calculated using
a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company during
the year. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss during
the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortized
cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument.

Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable Value, Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s ({CGU) fair valueless costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other asssts or
Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time leue of money
and the risks specific to the asset.
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a peried of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied te project future eash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified.
In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used,

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions
General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation, When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate assef, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a

" provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the tine value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provideni fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable
to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance
sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to,
for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme, Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is
expenses off at the time of payment of premium, '

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the carlier of:
¢  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
# The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gaing and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
s Net interest expense or income

The company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal
and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchiase or sell the asset, '
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

» Debt insiruments at amortized cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) .

e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

s Equity mstruments in subsidiaries carried at cost

Debt instruments at amortized cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a}  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial mesasurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables
etc.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:

a} The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initialty as well ag at
each reporiing date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest carned whilst holding FYTOCI debf instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method. '

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOQCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL, However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or climinates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.
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Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 20622

Equity instruments

All equity investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries) in scope of Ind AS 109
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in separate
financial statements less impairments if any. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of'the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk, Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowanice based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting
date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument irproves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrament. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
SENE OEN
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Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

+ Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables; ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The aflowance reduces the net
carrying amownt. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

¢ Debt ingtruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets arc already reflected at
fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL
amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective
of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk
to be identified on a timely basis,

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial agsets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial Habilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liebilities are clagsified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrewings, payables, or as derivatives designated as bedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. :

All financial liabilities arc recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracte and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near term, This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered info by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.




Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

m)

(0)

Finaneial labilitiss designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity, All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well
as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amottization is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
fender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new lability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offzetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an infention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line itemn on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The company
measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement,
the company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, interest income, finance
costs and tax expense.

(_}_ GURLGRAM
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Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

5 Financial assets

(i} Investments

16,665,000 (Previous year 16,665,000) Investment in Equity shares of
Jora Hotels Private Limited of Re, | each fully paid.

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Non-Current

(i) Other non-current financial assets
Security Deposits
Deposits paid under protest
Other bank balances

As at Agat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in [akhs Rs in lakhs

3,300.00 3,300.00
3,300.00 3,300.00
3,300.00 3,300.00
3,300.00 3,300.00
3,300.00 3,300.00
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

14.18 14,18

6.29 6.29

4.22 432

24.69 24,79

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

6 Inventories As At As At
{valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine) 7.26 8.78
Liquer and wine 5.50 4.37
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 28.01 21.87
Total 40.71 41.02

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




Celsia Hotels Private Limtted

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

7 Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables®
Unsecured, considered good
*read with note number 35(c)

Break-up for security details:
Trade receivables

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
97.84 29.20
97.84 29.20
97.84 29.20
97.84 29.20

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person,
Nor any trade or other receivable are dne from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director ar
member. The interest free credit period given to customers is upto 90 days.

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks
On current accounts

Beposits with original maturity of 3 months or less

Cash on hand

As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

82.70 29.34
650.00 575.00
1.42 1.16
734,12 605,50

At March 31, 2022, the Company had available Rs, Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs, Nil lakh} of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

(iii) Other current financial assets

Security deposit
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

8 Other current assets

Advances recoverable in cash or kind

Accrued revenue

Balance with statutory/ govermment authorities
Prepaid Expenses

o
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Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakbs Rs in lakhs

13.26 15.52
2141 7.44
34.67 22,96
As at Agat
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Ry in lakhs Rs in lakhs

12.30 15.10

1.50 -
3.09 11.86
12.78 11.39
29.67 38.33




Celsin Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

9 Equity Share capital

Autherised Share Capital

Equity shares Preference shares

No. of shares

Rsinlakhs  No. of shares Rsin lakhs

At April 1, 2020 400,000 4,00 5,000,000 5,000.00
Increasef{decrease} during the year - . - -
At March 31, 2021 400,000 4.00 5,000,000 500000
Increase/{decrease) during the year - . R R
At March 31, 2022 400,000 4.00 5,000,000 5,000.00

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. | per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

share, #n the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,

after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propertien to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Issued equity capital®

Equity shares of INR 1 each 1ssued, subscribed and fully paid

No. of shares Ry in lakhs

At April 1, 2020 352,677 3.53
Increase/(decrease) during the year . .
At March 31, 2021 352,677 3.53
Increase/(decrease) during the year . R
At Mareh 31, 2022 352,677 3.53
*read with note number 35(a)
Shares held by holding company
As at As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Equity shares of Re. 1 each fully paid up No. of shares Rsinlakhs  No ofshares Rsin lakhs
Fleur Hotels Private Limited 352,677 3.53 352,677 3.53
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at As 8l
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Equity shares of INR 1 each fully paid

Fleur Hotels Private Limited

No. of shares

% held No. of shares % held

352,677

100.00% 352,677 100.00%

The Company has not issued Bonus Share, Share for consideration other than Cash and has not bought back
shates during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.




Celsia Hotels Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

10 Other equity
Securities Premium

At April 1, 2020

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At March 31, 2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At March 31, 2022

Retained Earnings

At April 1, 2020
Less) for the yeat
At March 31, 2021
Profit for the year
At March 31, 2022

Crpital Reserve ( Equity compeonent of loan from holding company)

At April 1,2020

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At March 31, 2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At March 31, 2022

Other reserves
Secuwrifies Premium
Retained BEarnings

Capital Reserve ( Equity corponent of loan from holding company)

R T ki

3,614.77

3,614.77

3,614.77

Rs in lakhs

3,109.17
(244.77)

786440
12.9%
TIETa8

Rs in lakhs

7.16

7.16

As at Asal
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhg

3,614,77 3,614.77
2,877.38 2,864.40
7.16 7.1%
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Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

11 Borrowings As at Asat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Non-current borrowings

Term Loans
Indian rupee loans from Banks (Secured)

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 1,2,3 and 4 below? 3,833.33 3,926.64

Vehicle loans (Refer note 5 below’ - 1.13
Teotal non-current borrowings 3,833.33 3,927.77
Current borrowings

Term Loans
Current maturity of long term loans

Kotak Mahindra Banl Limited (Refer note 1,2,3 and 4 below) 902.33 630.85

Vehicle loans (Refer note 5 below) 1.06 1.66
Total current borrowings 903.39 632.51
Less: Amount clubbed under “current borrowings™ {903.39) (632.51)

Net current borrowings - -

Term loans

1.) Rupee term loan for repayment of unsecured loans infused by Holding company: The bank shall be
entitled to vary/change the rate of interest from time to time or method of computation of such rate or to
charge an additional or penal rate by sending to the company an intimation in this regard. - First and exclusive
charge on all existing and future current assets and moveable fixed assets of the company

- First and exclusive equitable charge on immoveable properties being land and bu[Edmg situated at 54B/55A
Hosur Mair road Electronic city Phase 1 Bangalore Karnataka
- Corporate guarantee of Flewr Hotels Pvt Lid.

Loan shall be repaid by way of 120 equal monthly installments starting from moenth following the month of
first disbursement of loan.

2.)Bmergency Credit Line Guarantee scheme (ECLGS) has been obtained during the year: The bank shall be
entitled to vary/change the rate of interest from time to time or method of computation of such rate or to
charge an additional or penal rate by sending to the company an intimation in this regard. It is secured with
(a) First and exclusive charge on all existing and future Current Assets of the Borrower.

(b) First and exclusive charge on all existing and future Moveable Fixed Assets of the Borrowet..

(¢} First and exclusive Equitable mortgage charge on immoveable properties being land and building sitvaied
at 54B/55A, Hosur Main Road, Electronic City, Phase 1, Bangalore, Karmnataka belonging 1o the Borrower.
Loan shall be repaid by way of 48 monthly installments after moratorium period of 12 months from the date
of first disbursement,

2,) Vehicle loan is secured by hypothecation of underlying motor vehicle acquired out of such loans. The loan
is repaid on agreed monthly installments,

Loan covenants

Bank loans contain certain debt covena.ntq relating to limitation on indebtedness, change in ownership, sub
{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

12 Provisions

Provision for gratuity

Current
Non-current

Provision for leave benefits

Current
Non-current

Total current

Total non-current

Asat Asat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

7.29 8.27
178 195
5.54 632
As at As at
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

4.45 2.63
4.45 2.63
6,20 4.58
5.54

6.32

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

13 Deferred tax Habilities (net)

Property Plant & Equipment
Amortisation of transaction cost

Deferred tax liabilities

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and
loss in the current/ earlier period but allowable for tax
purpeses on payment basis

Eiffect of unabsorbed depreciation and business toss
Provision for Gratuity

Provisien for Leave compensation

Interest on Borrowings

MAT (redit Entitlement

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

676.91 659.84

10,33 13.73

687.24 673,57

392 345

85.79 84.23

2.03 2.30

1.24 0.73

26.95 30.46

366.77 373.02

486.70 494,19

200.54 179.38

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31

March 2022 and 31 March 2021:

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax rate

Tax at statutory income tax rate

Effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax Effect of expenses/ income not allowed/ required to tax

under Income tax charge/ (credit) in respect of earlier year
Net

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in kakhs

35,20 (313.01)
27.82% 27.82%
9.79 (87.08)

1.01 2.63

11.88 16.73
22.68 {67.72)




Celsia Hotels Private Limited .
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

14 Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

0% loan from Fleur Hotels Private Limited (100% holding company) repayable on

demand) )
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 11)

(if} Trade payables*
-Micro and small enterprises
~Other than Miero and small enterprises
*read with note number 35(d)

(iif) Other current financial liabilities

Interest acerued but not due on borrowings
QOutstanding dues of other creditors

15 Other current Habilities

Advance from customers
Statutory dues

As at As at
March 31,2022  Marck 31, 2021
Rs in lalkhs Rs in lakhs

- 40,00
903.39 632.51
903.39 672.51
As at Asat
March 31,2622  March 31, 2021
Rg in lakhs Rs in lakhs
34.63 12.62
54.46 297.88
134,09 310.50
As at Asat
Mareh 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
10.63 11.13
59.44 4293
70.07 54.08
As at Ag at
March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
Rs in fakhs Rs in lakhs
718 9.39
24,06 17.58
31.24 26,97
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Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

16 Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations
Sale of products and services

- Reom rental

- Pood and beverage (excluding liquor and wine)
- Liquor and wine

- Banquet rentals

- Other Services

17 Other income

Excess provision/ credit balances written back
Miscellaneous income

18 Cost of food and beverages consumed

’
(a} Consnmption of food & beverages excluding llquor & wins
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less; Inventory at the end of the yea
Cost of food and beverage consumed

{b) Consumption of liguor , Wine & Smoke:
Inventory af the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the yeal
Cost of liquor and wine consumed

19 Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to prevident fund and ether funds
Grafuity expense

Leave compensation expenses

Staff welfare oxpenses

For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Hs in lakhs R in lakhs
1,090.54 586,11
168.01 123.44
17.06 12.58
.32 0.73
85.60 39.89
1,368.53 762,75
For the year ended Tor the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
_ Rsinlakhs Rs in lakhs
12.05 -
- 1,31
12,05 1,31
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
878 12.89
99.35 70,55
108.13 8344
7.20 8.78
100,93 74.66
437 570
9.35 0.5%
13.72 6.20
5.50 4.37
8,22 1.83
109.15 7649

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
R in lakhs R in lakhs

202.20 143.06

16.43 14.68

1.48 .59

202 1.73

12.29 8.37

234,412 169.43
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The company, threugh C8R initiative focuses on following areas;

20 Other expenses Far the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockety, linen, provisions and others 21,15 18.40
Power and fuel 139.33 103.26
Linen & uniferm washing and laundry expenses 11,06 2.29
Guest transportation 15,98 13.91
Subscription charges 385 349
Repair and maintenanco
- Buildings 17.56 a4
- Plant and machinery 27.87 16.30
- Others 12.41 4.58
Rates and taxes 24.41 29.82
Insurance 6.69 7.53
Cemmunication costs 7.20 8.44
Printing and stationery 4.00 2.87
Traveling and conveyance 1.83 0.61
Advertisement and business promotion 41.25 23.70
Management Fee 70.94 34,75
Commission -other than sole selling agent 38,70 27.02
Security and cleaning expenses 13.13 9.66
Membership and subscriptions 219 1.90
Legal and professional fees 9.64 8,90
Freight and caitage 0.31 0.44
Corporate social responsibility* 5.07 9.45
Payment to auditors 1.00 1.00
Miscellaneous expenses 299 0.75
Sundry Balances Wirte Off 3,80 -
482,36 33251
" Payment to auditor
As auditor 1,00 1.00
1,00 1.00
* Details of CSR expenditure: For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
(2} Gross amount required to be gpent by the company during the yeat 5.7 0.43
(h) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2022: In cash Yet to be paid in cash
iy Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
ity On purposes other than (i) above 5.07 -
597 -
{(c) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2021: Yetio be paid in cash
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
i)  On purposes other than (i) above 9.45 -
9.45 - -

* Vpcational skilling of Person with disabilities, for mainstream employment
* Empowerment of weaker section of soctety through education and skill trainjng

+ Giving special care o disabled’s, advoeacy for inclusion and early identification of
person with disabilities
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21 Finance costs

Interest

- on term loans from banks

- on vehicle loans

Bank cherges (including conunission on credit card collection)

22 Depreciation and amortization expense

Diepreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets

23 Finance income

Interest [ncome on :
«Bank Deposits
- Interest on income tax refund

24 Tarnings per Share (Basic And Diluted)

Fur the year ended

For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rg in Inkhs Rg in lakhs
395.26 349,72
017 0.31
6,56 4,04
401,99 354.07

For the yenr ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs R in lakhs
147.53 148.65
{61 0.39
145.14 145,04

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
23.22 4.44
7.46 -
30.68 4,40

Basic EPS amounts are calculaled by dividing the profit for the year atiributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average

number of Equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS emounts are caleutated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company (after adjusting for interest on the
convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of Eguity shares that wenld be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and sharc data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Profit after tax (Rs in lakhs)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
Basic & Diluted BEPS

For the year ended

For the year chded

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
12,52 {743.30)
352,677 352,677
3.55 (69.55)

The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in share transactions during the year.
There have been no other transactions invelving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of

authorisation of these financial statements.

(This space has been Intentionally l2ft blank)
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26,

25, Estimation of Uncertaintics related to global health pandemic on CGVID-19

Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions
a. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows and is independent of the cash inflows of the
other hotel properties, hence identified as cash generating units, The Company assesses the carrying amount of hotel
properties (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
Where the carrying amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss (if any) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach including various
significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins, growth rate and
selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022
Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) 12.00%
Long Term Growth Rate 5.00%

As at March 31, 2022, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount and the change
in estimated future economic conditions on account of possible effects relating to COVID-19 is unlikely to cause
the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

b. Loss Allowance on trade receivables

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting petiod based on the Company’s history
of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates. In
calculating expected credit loss, the Company has also considered the likelihood of consequential default considering
emerging sitnations due to COVID-19 and has taken info account estimates of possible effect from the pandemic
relating to COVID-19. Basis this assessment, the allowance for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2022 is
considered adequate.

Gratuity and other post-employment benefit p!aﬁé

Rs in lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Present value of defined benefit

obligation 7.29 8.27
Total ' 7.29 8.27

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit, The level of
benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The Corapany makes
provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the
Projected unit credit method.
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The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the fotal plan assets are as follows:

March 31, March 31,
2022 - 2021

Unguoted investments:
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC - -
Total -

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

March 31,2622  March 31, 2021

Discount rate: % Yo
Pension plan 6.10% 5.60%
Future salary increases:

Pension plan 5.00% 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners: Years Years
Pension plan

Male 60 6
Female 69 60

A qguantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is as
shown below:

India gratuity plan:

. Rs in lakhs
March 31, N_Iarch 31, March 31, March 31,
2022 2022 2022 2022

Assumptions
Sensitivity Level

Tmpact on defined benefit
obligation

Assumptions
Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined benefit
obligation

Discount rate

1% increase 1% decrease

Future salary increases .

1% increase 1% decrease

(0.22) 0.24
March 31, March 31,
2021 2021

0.24 (0.23)
March 31, March 31,
2021 2021

Discount rate

1% increase 1% decrease

Fature salary increases

1% increase 1% decrease

(0.27) 028

0.28 02T

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
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The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Rs in lakhs
For the vear ended For the year ended
Duration (Years) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1 1.81 1.94

2 1.54 1.66

3 1.28 141

4 1.00 1.14

5 0.78 0.91

Above 5 2.66 2.25

‘Fotal expected payments 2,07 : 9.31

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years (March 31,
2021: 5 years).

27, Commitments and contingencies
a. Commitments
Estimated amourt of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

At March 31, 2022, the Company had NIL commitments (March 31, 2021: Rs NIL)

b. Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Rs in lakhs
As at March | As at March
31,2022 31, 2021

a. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of guarantees issued by 264
company’s bankers )
b. |{Service tax demand raised under Finance Act, 1994 for the

period from July 2012 to March, 2015 (Rs. 6.29 lakhs/- £3.89 83.89
deposited under dispute) .




Celsia Hotels Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

28, Related Party Transactions

a) Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have

occurred,

Ultimate Holding company -

Hoelding Coinpany -

Fellow subsidiary companies -

Enterprise in which holding company has significant -
influence

Key Management Personnel -

ol curlicram )y

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Jora Hotels Private Limited
Inovoa Hotels & Resoris Limited
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited
Berggruen Hotels Private Limited
Hamstede Living Private Limited

Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited

Mr. Davander Tomar (Director)
Mr. Rajesh Kumar (Director)



- 170 - - TZ-1BIN-TE
- - - - TT-TEA-IE ponwr] SjeAll] SI10H [UIORAH
- - €00 - ITTIEA-TE
- - - - L{TIBACIE Pl SjeALLd S]J0H Mg
- - - 15°¢ Tz-reN-1¢
- - - £1°1 I N-1E PJIWITT ST 9947, WO
Auedues ay) Aq PIARISI JHNOWY
- el - - [TEN-TE
- - - - Z7-IRIA-IE D3I SUIOSAY 39 S[210T] BOAOU]
Araed Jo preyeg wo PIAIIIAL JUNOGWY
- - - oo TT-IBN-1¢
- - - 150 CTIEA-TE PaNtTT S[SJ0H 9al] Uowf
Ayxed
Jo Jieyaq o pred sasmadxa Jo JudmasInqUIINY
2dTONUI JUBIGIUSIS e 2 —— Suedmos Anedumos papog
sey LAaedwed Smplog Bo:w,m. Swiprog smpjoy amax £118] PAIE[OY YIIM SUODIESUBE ],
Pdgm ur astdaymy : BB}
SYYD] Ul Sy

Tea4 [BIOURTLY JURA]2I Ot} J0J $311ied PITR[>X JHA OIUT P219}u U2q IARTY BT SUOORSUEL JO JUNOLIY (210} 9 sapiaoid ojqe] mEBomow oq],

TT07 “I€ YD IEJA POPUa IBAA DY) J0) SIUIWIIE)S [RIDUBEI] 03 S3J0N

PAMIWIY 3)BALLJ S[330 EBIS[3)D




(soxe I Jo 12N} pred soaq yudumoSeunyAl

- } 0L Ev] - TTTRA-1E
0005 - TTIBA-IE PoIIUIL] 9)BALLJ S[210F me] ]
{preday]) ueoy
- - 0L €81 - LT-TBN-LE
00°01 - TTIEN-IE PaUIIT SJealld SO0 101,
(was[e)) sueorf
- - - - TT-EBN-TE .
- - - 260 LT IEA-IE PRUTULT SHOSIY 2 §{930H BOAOT]
- - - - TZ-TeN-1E
- - - 96’1 TTIRN-EE PRI SYEALI] S[910FH 331 UOUET
Aueduioy) oy Lqg pred junowry
- 80°0 - - 1T-BN-TE
- - - - A L LY Y POIIET AJBALL] S[e]OH USMISSIYg
QWINTUE JIEIuS1S APIDISANS fuedaios Aueduiod - )
sey Luedmwod Suipjoyy JTTAIEIPISq Smipjoy papuy Apred poIRpY YHA SUCYIESHRI],
MO Suipjog Ieax ;
Yoy m asgidrdyugy AEBWN)

7707 1€ Y2Iepy Papud avaL 91) I0] SIUIWILE]S [BIDUBULY 0] S3)0N

PAIIWIT 9}BALLT S[3)0H BIS[)



- 00°00£°E - - 1C-TeN-1¢
- 6000€°¢ - - [l Ll §3 PRNIITT S1BALL] STHOT] BIOY
SIEIUTISIAT] PUIEIND
~UON -PUR AB3A 21} J¢ SUIPURISING SIUR[BY
LLO - - . TZ-reN-1E
LLD - - - TTIEN-IE POIRUT] )ALl BIPU] SUIILST SIPESTT PUIA
- - - 60891 12-TeN-f¢
- - - 0Tee TTIEN-IE PoIIUTY S[9}0H 321] uowa]
SIDI[IGRI] JEALIND
IBYID -Pua T34 3] Je SUIPUE)SINO SIDUB[RY
- - - 80°€9 T BN-TE
66111 [44id [l £ Pa)WI S{230H 991, TOWD]
WINPUL JUBIHJISIS Auedwod
d T /A eipisqns Augdurod apu
se Anedmwos Suipjo MO Suprom smproy m..:MMm Avied pIjefOy ILA SUOTIOBSHE],
orys ur asudipoyg : IPBWOYY

2707 ‘1€ YOI®BjA papud Iead oY) I0J S}MAIMIIE)S [BEIDUBLI] 0) SJ0N
PRIIMELY 2}BAIE] SIOI0Y BIS[2)




Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financiai statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

29, Fair value measurement

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and provides
additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies, inclading the
criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument.

a, Financial Assets

Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amortised i
FVTPL ““I pyyey, | Amortised
Cost Cost
Financial Assets .
Trade Receivables - - 097.84 - 29.20
Security Deposits ) 20.47 ) 20.47
(non-current)
Security Deposits ) 13.26 15.52
{current) i
Other bank balances - 4,22 - 432
Cash and Cash 734.12 605.50
Equivalents i )
Interest accrued on } 2141 ) 7.44
deposit with banks
Investments 3,300,00 - 3,300.00 -
Total Financial Assets | 3,300.00 891.32 3,300.00 682.45
Financial Liakilities
Rs in lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost
Borrowings (Non- ; 3,833.33 . 3,927.77
current)
Borrowings (current) - 903.39 - 632.51
Trade Payables - 134.09 - 310.50
Other Current
Financial Liabilitics - 70.07 - >4.08
Total Financial
Liabilities - 4,940.88 - 4,924 .86




&
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Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending
on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

i) Level 1
Inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

i) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

ili) Level 3

Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable
related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and
liabilities:

Financial assets and liahilities measured at fair value
Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets as FVTPL _ - - -

Investment in Equity share of Tora - - 3,300 3,300
Hotels Private Limited

Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets as FVTPL . . . -

Investment in Equity share of Tora - - 3,300 3,300
Hotels Private Limited




Celsia Hotels Private Limited :
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

30. Financial risk manpgement ebjectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The inain purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial
assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from
its operations.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk and Hquidity risk. The
Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk. Financial insttuments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt abligations with floating interest rates.
The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company expects the variable
rate to decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

Rs. In lakhs
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Variable rate borrowings 4,735.66 4,557.49

Fixed rate borrowings 1.08 2.7%

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates
on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all
other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact
on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase/decrease in basis peints Effect on profit before tax
Rs. In lakhs

March 31, 2022

Rs 50 24.60

Rs {50) (24.00)

March 31, 2021

Rs 50 22.07

Rs (50} (22.07)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

{a) Trade receivables

Custorer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of
number of days and amount,

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value
of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 7. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

Rs. in lakhs

Ageing March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Not due _
0-60 days past due 96.89 26.65
61-120 days past due - 0.28 2.23
121-180 days past due 0.58 -
180-363 days past due 0.09 0.32
365-730 days past due - -
more than 730 days - -

Provision for doubtful debts (including provision for expected credit loss)

Rs. in lakhs
Ageing March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Not due - -

0-60 days past due - -
61-120 days past due - -
121-180 days past due - -
180-365 days past due - -
more than 365 days - -
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Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts — Trade receivables (including provision for
expected credit loss)

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2622 March 31, 2021

Provision at beginning - -

Particulars

Addition during the year - -

Reversal during the year - ' -

Utilised during the year - -

Provision at closing - -

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury
department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company’s
maxitnum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2022, 31 March
2021,

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans, The Company assessed the concentration
of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a
sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with
existing lenders, There are no undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilitics based on
contractnal undiscounted payments.

Rs in lakhs
On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 ItoSyears. >S5 years Total -
months months
Year ended
March 31, 2022
Botrowings * - 145.69 757.70 3,800.41 58.03 4,761.83
Trade and other 134.09 ) i ) _ 134.09
payables
Financial Liabilities 70.07 - - - - 70.07
204,17 145.69 757.70 3.800.41 58.03 4,965.99
S
au rau.r;;'ra/a:*ﬂ\ w\
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Less than 3 3to12

On demand months months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Year ended
March 31, 2021
Borrowings * 40.00 95.01 535.84 3,929,093 - 4,600.78
Trade and other 310.50 ) ) i ) 310.50
payables
Financial Liabilities 54.08 - - - - 54,08

' 404,58 95.01 535.84 3,929.93 - 4,965.36

* represents un-discounted cashflows

31. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, refurn capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, inferest bearing loans and borrowings,

trade less cash and cash equivalents.

Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

i 4,736.72
Borrowings (N(')te 11 & 14) 3,967.77
{Net of Processing Fee)
Trade payables (Note 14) 134.09 310.50
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) 734.12 605.50
Net debt 4,136.69 3,672.77
Total capital (Note 9 & 10) 6,502.86 6,489.88
Capital and net debt 10,639.55 10,162.65
Gearing ratio 39%, 36%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years

ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,
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32. Segment Reporting

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a single
unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind AS 108
— “Operating Segments”.

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only demestic operations and hence no information required for the Company as per
the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments™.

Information about major custemers

Detail customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for year ended March 31,
2022 and March 31, 2021:-

Party March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Tata Electronics Pvt Ltd, 242.61 |-
Tales From India Tours Pvt, Ltd. - 22052 |-
Make My Trip India Pvt. Ltd. ' 122.01 |-

The Company has considered possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID 18
and has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for next one year and believes that they can
meet all their obligations with the support of the parent company. Also, the parent Company confirms
that they provided unconditional and irrevocable financial support by way of continuous investment in
the Company in the form of equity investment and unsecured loan, as and when required.

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006. ‘
Rs. In lakhs

March 31, | March3l1,

2022 2021
the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 39.63 12.62
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Nil Nil
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making Nil Nil
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appeinted day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small
and Medium Enferprise Development Act, 2006,
the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Nil Nil
accounting vear; and
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the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprisefor the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006
35.  Supplementary information as per requirement of Schedule 1T of the Companies Act,
a} Detail of shareholding of promoters of the company
As at March 31, 2022
S.No. | Promoter Name | Number of % of total | Change Number of | Percentage | %
shares at the | Share during shares at of Total change
beginning of | Capital the year* | the end of | shares during
the year the year the year
2021 2022
1 Fleur Hotels 352,677 100% - 352,677 100% -
Private Limited )
As at Mareh 31, 2021
S.No. | Promoter Name | Number of % of total | Change Number of | Percentage | %

‘ shares at the | Share during shares at of Total change
beginning of | Capital the year* | the end of | shares during
the year the year the year

‘ 2020 2021
1 Fleur Hotels 352,677 100% - 352,677 100% -
Private Limited
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b} Ratio Analysis and its elements

March March % Reason for
8.No. | Ratio Numerator Denominator | 2022 2021 Variance | variance
Current
1 | Current Ratio | Current Asset liabilities 0.82 0.69 18.65% | -
Debt Equity Shareholder
2 | Ratio Total debt equity 0.73 0.71 2.76% | -

' ‘Increase in
Debt service | Earnings profitability as
coverage available for debt compared to

3 | Ratio service Debt service | 0.54 0.37 43.04% | previous year
| Increase in
Average profitability as
Return on Net profit after shareholders compared to
4 | Equity taxes equity 0.14% (3.71%) (103.65%) | previous year
Inventory Increase in revenue
Turnover Cost of Goods Average has lead to increase
5 | Ratio Sold Inventory 2.67 1.74 53.68% | inventory levels
Trade
Receivable Increase in revenue
turnover Avg. accounts has lead to increase
6 | Ratio Net credit sales receivable 21.54 15.96 34.97% | average debtors
Not applicable to
Trade the company
Payables Net credit - Average considering nature
turnover purchase(F&B & | Trade NA NA NA | of industry in which
7 | Ratio Liquor wine) Pavable it operates.
Net capital Increase in revenue
Turnover Working as compared to
8 | Ratio Net Sales capital (6.58) (2.30) 186.05% | previous year
Increase in
profitability as

Net Profit . compared to

9 | Ratio Net Profit Net sales 0.91% (32.16%) | (102.84%) | previous year
. Increase in
Return on profitability as
capital Capital compared to

10 | employed EBIT employed 3.55% 0.32% 994.74% | previous year
! Not applicable to
Income generated the company
from Time considering nature

Return on investments(Fixed | weighted of industry in which

11 | investment Deposits) investrnents NA NA NA

(i)

(if)
(iii)

il operates,

Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation

and other amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like Joss on sale of Fixed assets etc.

Debt Seryice = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments.

Capita] Employed = Net worth+ Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability - Net Intangible aseets
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¢) Trade Receivables ageing schedule based on requirement of Schedule II:

As at March 31, 2022 (Rs. In Lakhs)
OQutstanding for following periods from due daie of
payment
Less 6 More
than months - | 1-2 than 3
Particulars 6 months | 1 year years 2-3 years | years Total
(i} Undispuied
Trade receivables —
considered good 97.75 0.09 - - - 97.84
(ii) Undisputed

Trade Receivables —
which have
significant increase
in credit risk

(iify Undisputed
Trade Recejvables —
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables—
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade
Receivahles — which
have significant
increase in credit
risk

Receivables — credit
impaired

(vi) Disputed Trade
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As at March 31, 2021

{Rs. In Lakhe)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment

Particulars

Less
than
6 months

6

1 year

months -

1-2
years

2-3 years

More
than 3

years Total

(i) Undisputed
Trade receivables
considered good

26.65

0.31

0.01 29.20

(ii) Undisputed -
Trade Receivables —
which have
significant increase
in credit risk

2,23

(iii) Undisputed -
Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade -
Receivables—
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade -
Receivables — which
have significant
increase in credit
risk

(vi} Disputed Trade -
Receivables — credit
impaired

d) Trade payables Ageing Schedule based on the requirement of Schedule TIT

As at March 31, 2422

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Outstanding for following perieds from due date of payment

enterprises and small enterprises

Particulars Less than 1 More than
1-2 years 2-3 years Total
_ year 3 years
Total optstandmg dues of micro 30,63 ) _ ) 39,63
enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro 71.73 8.32 1.79 12.62 94.46

Disputed dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

- Unbilled Dues
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enterprises and small enterprises

As at March 31, 2021 {Rs. In Lakhs)
Outstanding for fellowing perieds from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 1 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than Total
year 3 years
Total o_utstandmg dues of micro 12.62 i ) ) 12.62
enterprises and small enterprises .
Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro 186.84 87.97 9.15 13.92 297.88

Disputed dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Unbilled Dues

e} Other Statutory Information

(1)) The Cotmpany have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the
financial year.

(ii). . The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961,

(iii).  The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the company for holding any Benami property

(iv).  The company has not entered into any transaction with companies struck off,

(v).  The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC
beyond the statutory period.

(vi). The corﬁpany has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section
2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

(vii). During the year, the company has not entered into any scheme of arrangements in terms of
section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly, the prescribed disclosures of
Schedule IIT are not required to be given.

(viii}. The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign éntities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

(2} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

(b)

whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(ix)  The Company have not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

(b}  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The previous year ﬁgures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to

conform to this year’s classification.
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